IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CLERK, SUPREME COURT
By ______Chief Deputy Clork

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Petitioner,

v.

4427

CASE NO: 5th DCA No.: 93-2405

DEWAYNE SMITH,

Respondent.

ON DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE FIFTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL

PETITIONER'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

ROBIN COMPTON JONES ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL Fla. Bar #846864 444 Seabreeze Boulevard Fifth Floor Daytona Beach, FL 32118 (904) 238-4990

COUNSEL FOR PETITIONER

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Respondent pled guilty to two counts of unlawful sale of a counterfeit controlled substance and to attempted possession of a He signed a plea form that stated he controlled substance. understood that he could be subject to a maximum sentence of 20 years imprisonment with no eligibility for basic gain time if found by the judge to be a habitual offender. He affirmatively indicated at his plea hearing that he read the written agreement before he signed it, that he had an adequate opportunity to ask questions of his attorney about the agreement, and that he understood the agreement. Smith was personally, specifically informed at his plea hearing about the possibility of a habitual offender sentence and the consequences of such a sentence. v. State, 19 Fla. L. Weekly D1818 (Fla. 5th DCA August 26, 1994). Respondent was sentenced as an habitual offender and the Fifth District Court of Appeal reversed and remanded relying on Thompson, infra. Smith, at D1818. The State then filed a Notice To Invoke Discretionary Jurisdiction of this Court based on express and direct conflict with a decision of this Court.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The opinion issued in the instant case by the Fifth District Court of Appeal cites <u>Thompson</u>, <u>infra</u>, as controlling authority which is currently pending jurisdiction in this Court. This constitutes prima facie express conflict, if accepted, thereby allowing this Court to exercise its jurisdiction.

As additional grounds for jurisdiction, the decision by the Fifth District Court of Appeal in this case is in express and direct conflict with this Court's decision in Massey, infra. Due to this conflict, this Court should exercise its discretionary jurisdiction.

ARGUMENT

THE DECISION IN THIS CASE IS IN EXPRESS AND DIRECT CONFLICT WITH A DECISION FROM THIS COURT.

A district court of appeal per curiam opinion which cites as controlling authority a decision that is either pending review in or has been reversed by the Supreme Court continues to constitute prima facie express conflict and allows the Supreme Court to exercise its jurisdiction. Jollie v. State, 405 So. 2d 418 (Fla. The opinion issued in the instant case by the Fifth 1981). District Court of Appeal cites Thompson v. State, 19 Fla. L. Weekly D1221 (Fla. 5th DCA June 3, 1994), as controlling is currently authority. (Appendix) Thompson jurisdiction in this Court, Florida Supreme Court Case Number 83,951, therefore, if accepted, this Court must exercise its jurisdiction in the instant case.

As additional grounds for jurisdiction, Petitioner asserts that the decision in the instant case is in express and direct conflict with this Court's decision in Massey v. State, 609 So. 2d 598 (Fla. 1992). In Massey, this Court held that the State's failure to strictly comply with the statute requiring that notice of the state's intention to have the defendant sentenced as an habitual offender be served upon the defendant, may be reviewed under the harmless error analysis. In that case, the State's error in failing to serve actual notice to the defendant was harmless where the defendant and his attorney had actual notice of the State's intention.

In the instant case, the Fifth District Court of Appeal reversed Respondent's sentence relying on <u>Thompson</u>, <u>supra</u>. The instant decision is in express and direct conflict with <u>Massey</u>, <u>supra</u>, because the Fifth District failed to apply a harmless error analysis. As in <u>Massey</u>, the Respondent had **actual** notice of the possible consideration of habitual offender sanctions.

At the time of entering his plea, Respondent signed a plea agreement which provided for the maximum sentence should he be determined by the Judge to be an habitual offender as well as the consequences of such a sentence. Respondent affirmatively indicated at his plea hearing that he read the agreement, had an adequate opportunity to ask questions of his attorney about the agreement, and that he understood the agreement. Respondent had actual notice of the possibility of a habitual offender sentence before he entered his plea, the protections afforded by Ashley v. State, 614 So. 2d 486 (Fla. 1993), were provided to him, and any error in failing to provide formal written notice of habitualization was harmless. The Fifth District erred in failing to apply a harmless error analysis as outlined in Massey, infra.

The Fifth District's decision in the instant case is in express and direct conflict with this Court's decision in Massey, infra. This honorable court should exercise its jurisdiction in this case and resolve the conflict between the two cases.

CONCLUSION

Based on the arguments and authorities presented herein, Petitioner respectfully requests this honorable court exercise its jurisdiction in this case.