Resp. adopted this Brf.

By _

SID J. WHITE

OCT 27 1994

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

Chief Deputy Clerk

SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

84421

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Petitioner,

versus

MICHAEL PENNINGTON,

Respondent.

CASE NO. 5th DCA. CASE NO. 93-2898

APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT IN AND FOR VOLUSIA COUNTY

RESPONDENT'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

JAMES B. GIBSON, PUBLIC DEFENDER SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

BRYNN NEWTON ASSISTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER Florida Bar Number 175150 112-A Orange Avenue Daytona Beach, Florida 32114-4310 904-252-3367

ATTORNEY FOR RESPONDENT

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Respondent agrees with Petitioner that this Honorable Court has jurisdiction to review the District Court's decision in this cause, although Respondent maintains that the District Court decision which is pending review by this Honorable Court and which is cited as controlling authority for the decision in this case directly and expressly conflicts with a different decision of this Honorable Court than that relied upon by Petitioner.

ARGUMENT

THE DISTRICT COURT'S DECISIONS IN THIS CASE AND IN THOMPSON v. STATE, 19 F1a. L. Weekly D1221 (F1a. 5th DCA June 3, 1994), DIRECTLY AND EXPRESSLY CONFLICT WITH ASHLEY v. STATE, 614 So. 2d 486 (F1a. 1993), AND ITS DECISION IN THIS CASE CITES AS CONTROLLING AUTHORITY THOMPSON v. STATE, 19 F1a. L. Weekly D1221 (F1a. 5th DCA June 3, 1994), WHICH IS PENDING REVIEW BY THIS HONORABLE COURT.

Respondent disagrees with Petitioner's contention that the District Court's decision in this case conflicts with this Honorable Court's decision in <u>Massey v. State</u>, 609 So. 2d 598 (Fla. 1992); but submits that the District Court's decision, rather, is in direct and express conflict with <u>Ashley v. State</u>, 614 So. 2d 486 (Fla. 1993).

In <u>Massey</u>, this Honorable Court held that the State's failure to physically place a copy of a written notice of its intent to habitualize Massey in his hands was harmless error; but Massey was convicted of burglary of a dwelling and grand theft at a <u>trial</u> and there was a clear record made, via the prosecutor's announcement in open court and in Massey's presence, of Massey's having actually received notice of the State's <u>intent</u> to ask the trial court to sentence him as an habitual offender. In <u>Thompson v. State</u>, 19 Fla. L. Weekly D1221 (Fla. 5th DCA June 3, 1994) (APPENDIX), the District Court's decision reveals that the Respondent was not provided with a notice of the trial court's intent to sentence him as an habitual offender until <u>after</u> he had entered a plea.

2

Petitioner asserts that "Because Respondent had actual notice of the <u>possibility</u> of a habitual offender sentence before he entered his plea, the protections afford by <u>Ashley v. State</u>, 614 So. 2d 486 (Fla. 1993), were provided to him, and any error in failing to provide formal written notice of habitualization was harmless." (Petitioner's Brief on Jurisdiction, Page 4.) (Emphasis supplied.) <u>Ashley</u>, however, requires that a defendant must be given written notice of <u>intent to habitualize</u>, not just the defendant be aware of the <u>possibility</u> of habitualization. <u>Ashley</u>, 614 So. 2d at 490.

The District Court's decision further conflicts with <u>Ashley</u> in that the District Court's remand for resentencing in <u>Thompson</u> <u>v. State</u>, <u>supra</u>, authorizes the trial court to sentence the defendant however it deems appropriate "consistent with guidelines or habitualization restrictions" so long as the defendant is given the opportunity to withdraw his or her plea and proceed to trial. <u>Thompson</u>, <u>supra</u>. In <u>Ashley</u>, however, the cause was remanded for resentencing within the sentencing guidelines¹. Id., 614 So. 2d at 491.

> Honorable Court to accept jurisdiction in this cause exists in Jollie v. State, 405 So. 2d 418 (Fla. 1981), wherein this

3

¹ It should be noted, also, that in <u>Rolling v. State</u>, 619 So. 2d 20 (Fla. 5th DCA 1993), the District Court held that by failing to give the defendant notice of habitual offender sentencing prior to the acceptance of his plea, the State was not entitled to seek habitual offender status, and "as in <u>Ashley</u>, the cause is remanded to the trial court for resentencing under the sentencing guidelines." Id., 619 So. 2d at 23.

Honorable Court held that a District Court of Appeal <u>per curiam</u> opinion which cites as controlling authority a decision that is either pending review in or has been reversed by the Supreme Court constitutes <u>prima facie</u> conflict and allows the Supreme Court to exercise its jurisdiction. <u>Thompson v. State</u>, 19 Fla. L. Weekly D1221 (Fla. 5th DCA June 3, 1994), is pending acceptance of jurisdiction by this Honorable Court in Supreme Court Case Number 83,951.

CONCLUSION

For the reasons expressed herein, Respondent agrees that grounds exist for this Honorable Court to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction and grant review of the Fifth District Court of Appeal's decision in this cause.